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Twynham Learning '

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of
the charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2022. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a Trustees' report, and a Directors’ report and strategic report under company law.

The Trust operates six academies for pupils aged 3 to 19 serving a catchment area in Christchurch
and Bournemouth. For Years R to 11 it has a capacity of 3,450 and had a roll of 3,207 in the school
census taken in October 2021. There were also 509 students in post-16 provision at the October 2021
census.

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable
company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary goveming documents of the
Academy Trust. The Trustees of the Twynham Learning Academy Trust are also the Directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is known as Twynham
Leaming.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

~

Members' Liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
Ilabllmes contracted before they ceased to be a member.-

Trustees’ Indemnities

The Academy Trust, through its Articles, has indemnified its Trustees to the fullest extent permissible
by law. During the period the Academy Trust purchased and maintained liability insurance for its
Trustees in the form of the Government's Risk Protection Arrangement, which provides unlimited

" employer's liability, unlimited third-party public liability and unlimited professional indemnity.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Members are responsible for the appointment of up to nine Trustees and further Trustees can be
co-opted by the Trustees in office at the time. Details of the Members who served during the year are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1. The term of office of any Trustee or
Local Advisory Board (LAB) Member is four years.

An audit of skills is used to identify desirable skills or experience, and this information is used when
advertising for new Trustees (or LAB Members).

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training framework for Trustees and LAB members developed and implemented the previous
year was continued. This included training on induction, essential elements to be covered in the first
year, development and refresher training, specialist topics for Lead Trustees/Governors and
Leadership training. All Trustees and LAB Members are required to keep a personal log of their
training which is requested by the Clerks on a termly basis and a Lead Trustee and Lead LAB
members for training were appointed this year to monitor training uptake. The framework is a dynamic
document with new training being added as it becomes available in line with identified needs. Much of
the school improvement training is arranged and delivered internally by the Director of Education. All
Trustees and LAB Members are required to update their safeguarding training annually.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Organisational structure

The Twynham Learning Multi-Academy Trust currently consists of six schools, all of which are
governed by the Members and the Board of Trustees of Twynham Learning. A CEO (who is also the
Accounting Officer) and a Director of Standards (now Director of Education) were appointed in
September 2018. In 2021-22 the Trust Executive Team was made up of the CEO, the Director of
Operations and the Director of Education (who also holds the position of Deputy CEO).

The Board of Trustees continued to operate full Trustee meetings with a focus on general business,
outcomes or resources in the first term of the year. Following a facilitated self-review, the Board
moved to a Committee structure in January 2022. The CEO/Accounting Officer attends meetings, the
Director of Education attends the Education Committee meetings and the Director of Operations
attends the Resources Committee meetings. The Audit Committee (comprising members of the Trust
Board but not the Chair) and the Local Advisory Boards also serve as Committees of the Board of
Trustees.

The Trustees delegate governance functions to the Local Advisory Boards and different levels of
delegation exist depending on circumstance. The School Improvement Strategy sets out levels of
assurance / concern and the model of support and challenge varies accordingly. This model has
proved highly successful in supporting The Grange Schoo! on its improvement joumey. Key roles are
allocated from within the LAB for particular oversight of core functions, eg Safeguarding, SEND and
Training.

Each academy within the Trust has its own Senior Leadership Team (SLT), led by its Headteacher,
and these SLTs are accountable to their own Local Advisory Board.

Trustees delegate the day-to-day management operations of the Academy Trust to- the
CEO/Accounting Officer. In order to facilitate effective operations, the CEO/Accounting Officer has
delegated authority within terms approved by the Trustees for operational matters, including
education, finance and employment.

Underpinning the membership arrangements of the Board of Trustees and the Local Advisory Board
is a formal Memorandum, the Governance Handbook, the various Terms of Reference and the
Scheme of Delegation, describing the respective roles and accountabilities of each body in relation to:
People & Structures, Systems, Strategy, Education & Curriculum, Finance, Infrastructure and
Compliance.

The Local Advisory Boards are responsible to, and held to account by, the Twynham Leaming Board
of Trustees for the performance of their schools. Monitoring processes are in place and, in the case of
underperformance of a Local Advisory Board, the Twynham Learning Board will intervene and has
reserved the right to suspend the Board and/or to discuss and appoint Local Advisory Board
members. During 2021 this was the case at Stourfield Infant School, where an Education
Improvement Board, chaired by the Chair of Trustees, is now in place temporarily to monitor school
improvement in place of the Local Advisory Board. The responsibilities of the LAB have been
transferred to the EIB until such time as the LAB is reinstated.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

The Chairs' Advisory Group (CAG) continues to meet on a half-termly basis, acting as the main link
between the Board of Trustees and the Local Advisory Boards. This group enhances communication,
offers advice, ensures consistency across the LABs and provides a forum for Chairs’ development.
CAG is represented on the Board via the Chair of Trustees who also chairs the group.

The Headteachers of the schools within the Academy Trust also met at least once per half-term as the
Executive Leadership Team (ELT) which is the main link between the Board of Trustees and senior
leadership teams. Under the professional leadership of the CEO, the Director of Education and the
Director of Operations and, through their Self-Improving Schools System (SISS) Board, they drive the
improvement agenda across the community of schools and ensure that strategic and operational
leadership is consistent and coherent across the schools. Representatives from ELT attend meetings
of the Board of Trustees as required to provide information to Trustees on the performance of schools
including the quality of teaching, standards, performance data, and student issues such as
attendance, exclusions, punctuality and disciplinary matters, as well as school development plans.
The Director of Education leads on pupil outcomes and the associated performance information is
shared with the Trust Executive, Headteachers and Trustees on a half termly basis. The Director of
Education supports the Trustees' work to achieve improved pupil outcomes by regularly engaging with
school leaders. Schools whose standards require further scrutiny have more direct support; activity is
very much targeted depending on need.

Terms of reference for the Members, the Board of Trustees, Education Committee, Resources
Committee, Audit Committee, the Chairs’ Advisory Group, Local Advisory Boards and Joint Governor
Panels have been agreed by the Trustees and_are fully documented as are the agreed lines of
accountability and leadership within the Trust's schools.

The Full Board of Trustees met eight times during the academic year and was responsible for
maintaining strategic oversight, setting vision and policies for the Academy Trust and ensuring that
appropriate safeguarding measures were in place across the Trust.

The Education Committee, attended by the Director of Education, met four times in the two terms
since it was reinstated during the academic year and was responsible for overseeing standards and
outcomes across the Trust. This included curriculum provision (including arrangements for provision
of remote leaming), pupil wellbeing, reviewing and ratifying educational policies, setting annual targets
for individual academies and overseeing key performance data on a Trust and individual academy
basis. A robust programme of individual school reviews was agreed and evaluated.

The Resources Committee, attended by the Director of Operations, met three times in the two terms
since it was reinstated during the academic year. The Committee maintains oversight of the finances
of the Academy Trust, establishes a funding model for use across the Trust, ensures compliance with
the Academy Trust Handbook, and reviews and ratifies financial policies as required. The Trustees
also consider and make recommendations on risk management, internal control and the value for
money framework, as well as matters relating to the premises and business continuity plan. The
Trustees agreed an appropriate programme of work to be delivered by independent.assurance
providers, receiving reports from the extemal atiditor, internal auditor and other bodies, maintaining
transparency and openness of communication at all times.

Trade union facility time

Twynham Learning does not recognise any trade unions for collective bargaining purposes, therefore
there is no requirement to offer/track facility time.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The arrangements for the setting of pay for the Academy Trust's key management personnel are
based on the Trust's Pay Policy which is informed by the DfE’'s School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions
statutory guidance. Remuneration is benchmarked against other schools of a similar size.

In relation to the pay of the CEO/Accounting Officer, a committee is formed comprising of three
Trustees with extensive performance management experience (one of whom is an Education
Specialist). The CEO is required to present a comprehensive self-evaluation report prior to the
Performance Review meeting, clearly stating evidential outcomes to the objectives set twelve months
previously. Pay is discussed in the absence of the CEO, once all evidence has been collated and
recorded. Consideration is given to outcomes to set objectives, performance throughout the Academy
Trust, professional development including leadership and membership of educational bodies, length
of service, and market forces.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

Twynham Leaming does not have any wider networks or affiliations with other charities, companies or
organisations and remains an education entity.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Twynham Learning staff came together at the start of the academic year to hear key note
presentations about the future of the organisation, its strategy and key topics including Safeguarding.
They also had the opportunity to attend workshops for their personal development / peer group
working. :

Throughout the year, staff benefit from attending staff meetings where they are briefed on matters of
concern to them and can ask questions of colleagues. There are also a number of additional inset
days where staff gather in school groups / phase groups / subject groups to co-design practice, learn
more about changes in the organisation and learn together. These inset days are coordinated by the
Trust's leaders to ensure staff have the knowledge they need and have time to build networks.

A number of development opportunities were provided through Two Rivers Institute and the Trust's
Leadership Team for staff to learmn more about the elements which represent a successful educational
organisation (which is one which gains success for its pupils). Cross-Trust working groups with
representatives from each school have been delivering ever improving arrangements to Pedagogy,
Curriculum and Assessment.

Focus groups were held during 2021/22 to inform the development of a staff intranet, read to launch
for the following academic year. This gave staff the opportunity to comment on what information they
would like to be able to access, the tools they would find useful etc. Work was also done to prepare
the ground for the launch of a staff representative group (The ForUm) in Autumn 2022.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Twynham Learning is founded on the principle of Equality and has transparent processes extending
this to the recruitment of staff (whether that is an external candidate or career development /
promotion of existing staff). All vacancies on our website set out our commitment as part of the advert:

“Twynham Learning values diversity and inclusiveness. We aim to eliminate unlawful discrimination
and promote diversity throughout our whole workforce. We want our workforce to be representative of
all sections of our community, so we give equal opportunities to all job applicants. We do not
discriminate on the basis of age, disability status, gender reassignment, marital/partnership status,
pregnancy/maternity, race/colour/national origin, religion/belief, sex or sexua! orientation.”

We will not ask candidates for any information about their health before they are offered a job.
However, we will check whether they require any adjustments to help them participate in our selection
processes (and we will always do our best to accommodate any reasonable request).

Our pay progression processes are moderated to ensure they are fair and that policies are
consistently applied to all.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the
academy trust

During 2021/22, coordinated procurement work was done with a number of local companies to obtain
value-for-money arrangements across the Trust's built estate; ensuring that competent, capable
contractors are in place in a consistent and reliable way for the safety of all of the site’s users.

Twynham Leaming's primary customers are of course its pupils and their families, with whom the
organisation has regular interaction at a variety of levels. Schools have regular communication with
families through letters, newsletters, social media information and events. There is also ongoing
liaison with community groups who choose to base their activities within the Trust's buildings through
regular lettings; the lettings income is useful to each school but the community provision is also of
importance. )

In addition, Twynham Learning has business relationships with other educational establishments;
through membership of the School Improvement Network and participation in CPD events. Two
Rivers Institute actively warks to build partnerships within the locality, in order that other educators
can work alongside Twynham Learning staff on their journey to excellence.

Page 7



Twynham Learriing

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Objectives and Activities
Objects and Aims

Twynham Leamning is driven by its social responsibility to offer every pupil the very best of
opportunities and ensure they are ready for their next step in life; whether transitioning to their next
class / next school or on to further / higher education or stepping out into the workplace. They deserve
a world class education; not just strong outcomes in terms of external examination results but also in
terms of the richness of their educational journey.

We commit to delivering equality of opportunity; not the same thing for all but recognising what each
individual pupil in our care requires to succeed.

We always seek to learn and to improve; recognising that we need to have humility in acknowledging
. areas which could be better and acting swiftly to make positive changes.

We exist to serve our community; recognising that each school should be its own entlty with its own
ethos and identify, rooted in its locality and responding to its context.

As an organisation, we hold each other to high standards in terms of our values and behaviours and
our effort on behalf of our pupils. We are highly ambitious for our pupils and therefore have high
expectations of our pupils in terms of behaviour, attendance and commitment to learning, so that they
can make the very most of their education and have the very best life chances. We seek support from
parents and carers in promoting the value of education with their children.

Strategic approach

The direction for the Trust's main objectives and activities is captured within the Twynham Learning
Excellence Strategy (see Appendix 1). The Excellence Strategy was informed by the work of the
Transforming Learning Communities Programme which comprised six “grass roots” reviews of Early
Years, Primary, Secondary, Post-16, SEND and People & Communication.

The Excellence Strategy is an umbrella approach for Twynham Learning as a fractal organisation in
that it can be applied at all levels of the organisation from Trust Executive Team to Schools to
Phases/Departments to Subjects and Operational Teams. The expectation is that all groups of staff
can define what excellence looks like, can accurately assess their current performance and can
deliver a robust plan to bridge the gap.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

This repeatable / scalable approach gives schools autonomy but still enables a collaborative approach
across groups of schools and colleagues. Each Headteacher is responsible for their own school's
Excellence Plan and the clear evaluative line of sight through the structure of their organisation to
ensure all its component parts are driving relentiessly towards excellence for the benefit of their
pupils.

The academic year 2021-22 was Year 1 of the Excellence Strategy where the general focus was
defined as “Adopting”. 2022-23 largely focusses on “Embedding” and the 3-5 years following that will
be “Developing” on our never-ending continuous improvement journey.

Public Benefit

The Trust provides educational services to all children in the local area. The Trustees confirm that
they have complied with the duty in Section 4 of the Charities Act 2006 to have due regard to the
public benefit guidance provided by the Charity Commission.

The Trust offers considerable public benefit through its role as a provider of education and the links it
has developed with the local community. A number of community groups use the Trust facilities on an
ongoing basis to deliver sporting, art and other services under a lettings agreement and the charges
made contribute to the running costs of the school.

Our PE and School Sport Partnership works with 12 local primary schools to develop engagement,
participation, professional development for teachers, health and physical literacy programmes and
community links. Our competitions and events provide opportunities for children to enjoy and benefit
from meaningful experiences. We also deliver the Dorset Leadership Academy, which supports
character development by empowering children through leadership roles to design, deliver and
promote physical activity and/or sport.

Two Rivers Childcare, our community based childcare provision had a successful year, providing
wraparound provision for pupils of Twynham Primary School and also for running holiday clubs which
were open to any primary age pupil. Having successfully bid for HAF Funding, the holiday clubs were
able to provide free places to Pupil Premium children who might otherwise be unable to access quality
childcare during the holidays. During the summer of 2022, 148 children (555 sessions) attended via
paid places and 99 children (550 sessions) attended via funded places. The children attending the
holiday club were from 19 different schools and there was an average of 45 children on site each day.

The Trust also worked closely with a range of local schools, beyond the organisational definition of
Twynham Learning. In particular, the work of Two Rivers Institute (TRI) in providing both initial teacher
training and ongoing CPD opportunities is supporting a large number of schools in the region and is
highly regarded as a training provider of choice. During 2021-22, 36 Secondary Teachers trained with
BPD SCITT and 4 Primary Teachers (two of whom are now permanently employed within Twynham
Leaming) trained with Poole SCITT in partnership with Twynham Learning. There were 16 Recently
Qualified Teachers on our RQT Programme and we had 18 colleagues participating in our Middle
Leader Development Programme. Over twenty local schools are actively engaged in partnership with
TRI to deliver development opportunities for their staff.

In particular, the TRI School Improvement Network had its first successful year, bringing together a

number of other local education partners to work with Twynham Learning Schools in honest
evaluation and collaborative school improvement journeys.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance
Key Performance Indicators

The number of students on roll within the Trust is approximately for the academic year 2021-22. This,
from the autumn 2021 pupil census is broken down into:

School Number on Roll
Twynham School 1,838
The Grange School 358
Twynham Primary School 216
Christchurch Junior School 491
Stourfield Infant School 338
Stourfield Junior School 475
Staff Turnover
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Pupil Attendance 2021-22

Post pandemic pupil attendance improved across the Twynham Leaming system but there were still
pockets of challenge. Primary phase attendance for 2021-22 was above national compared to
2018-19 whilst secondary phase attendance was below national. The attendance of pupils from
disadvantaged backgrounds was significantly worse than that of their more advantaged peers.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Strategic Report
Pupil Outcomes 2021-22

Summer 2022 marked the return of formal statutory assessments and public examinations, the first
year that these had taken place post pandemic.

A-Level outcomes at Twynham Sixth Form were strong with the average grade attained rising from a
C+ to a B. GCSE attainment at Twynham School was also strong showing a 15% increase in the
proportion of students gaining a § or above (strong pass) in English and Mathematics alongside
EBacc entry of 64% with 55% attaining a strong pass in the EBacc. The EM5+ figure was 13% above
national.

Year 6 performance across the board was good with all three KS2 primary phase schools being
above national, with Christchurch Junior School noting strong improvement. Though these figures are
welcome, there is no let up and the trust will be seeking to improve still further in 2022-23. Taken
holistically, KS2 performance at Twynham Learning primary phase schools was 70% compared to the
national average of 59%. .

Similarly, both sets of KS1 outcomes were above national with reading outcomes at Twynham
Primary being very strong.

There is still work to do to improve outcomes for pupils. GCSE performance at The Grange School
was not as strong as we would wish it to be and neither were Year 1 phonics outcomes.

In November 2021, The Grange School was inspected by Ofsted and was removed from the category
of ‘serious weaknesses’ being graded as ‘good’ by the visiting HMI. This is something for both the
trust and the school! to be proud of in light of the long journey back to being a ‘good’ school spanning
the pandemic years.

The HMI noted the work of Twynham Learning in his published report.

“The trust has supported the school strongly. This is a significant factor in its improvement. Members
of the trust board and governors have challenged trust leaders to improve the school quickly. Trust
leaders have delivered. Their vision for the curriculum is shared by staff. Consequently, even though
change has been demanding, staff morale remains high.”

Christchurch Junior School was also inspected in May 2022 and retained its ‘good’ designation.
Again, the work of Twynham Learning was noted in HMI's report.

“Central trust staff set high expectations of subject leaders in this school.”

Stourfield Infant School lost its designation as an ‘outstanding’ school when it was inspected in
October 2021 and leaders from across the trust are working to address the issues raised by HMI. A
new Headteacher took up post in September 2022 and with her new leadership team, coupled with
trust support, is bringing about rapid improvements in the quality of education provided. School
Improvement at Stourfield Infant School is being overseen by the Chair of Trustees who chairs the
Education Improvement Board.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report

The Trust continues to challenge and support each of the six schools to improve the educational
outcomes for the pupils in its care. There is a robust school improvement strategy in place predicated
on constantly striving for excellence, with each schoo! having a full and holistic Autumn Term Review
completed by the trust Core Services team. This is supported both by the Self-Improving School
System (SISS) Board and the Two Rivers Institute which operationally leads on school improvement
and the provision of CPD for both Twynham Learning and the wider school system. Every Twynham
Learning school has a bespoke school |mprovement plan with the School Improvement Team quality
assuring each school’s ownership and drive for school improvement.

Most Twynham Learning schools remain over-subscribed and increasingly popular with parents and
carers in our local community. Post-16 numbers at Twynham School are now approximately 500
students across years 12 and 13. .

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the
Statement of Accounting Policies.

Promoting the success of the academy

As has been set out in other sections of this report, Twynham Learning has a real ambition for the
success of its young people. There has been structured and effective strategic improvement;
delivered in a collaborative and sustainable way. The School Improvement model with its cyclical
approach ensures that leaders identifying the next key developments which will give pupils
ever-increasing educational outcomes and educational journeys. Leaders give their staff increasing
opportunity to grow as individuals and to co-design the future with peers, and they are relentless in
the pursuit of excellence. The operational functions of the Trust are being modernised and the best
practice is being shared across all schools. The Governance functions have a clear strategic view and
hold leaders to account.

The organisation is committed to the highest standards of public life; to show moral purpose in its
planning, decision-making and actions. It actively seeks to form community links, to support those in
need in the locality and to work collaboratively with the Local Authority in providing education
services.

Financial Review
The Academy Trust generated a surplus of £625,000 in the restricted general funds in the year ended
31 August 2022. The current reserves position is as follows: .

£'000 31 August 2022 31 August 2021
In year surplus / (deficit) (1,903) (1,458)
Restricted general and Restricted fixed assets funds balance* 50,125 50,463
Unrestricted funds balance ’ 316 166

* Excluding pension reserve

Page 12



Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report

The principal source of funding for the Trust continues to be funds received from the Department for
Education. Resources across the Trust have been tightly managed to ensure maintained delivery of a
high-quality provision. ESFA recognise the current arrangements as being robust and there is a
positive working relationship established, including hosting a visit from their CEO during Summer
2022, ahead of him taking up his post. The intake at The Grange School continues to be lower than
capacity but students on roll are starting to increase because of the closer alignment with Twynham
School and the success of the School Improvement work in securing a Good rating from Ofsted.

The Trust uses benchmarking and Integrated Curriculum Financial Planning to inform budget planning
and performance within the year. The Director of Education and the Finance Manager work closely
with schools to shape their budgets to deliver the educational and wider objectives of the school.
Schools / LABs then present their budgets to the CEO and Director of Operations who can then
recommend them to Trustees for ratification.

The Trust benefits from access to School Condition Allocation capital funding and a prioritised
pragramme of investment is in place across the Twynham Learning sites. Significant focus has been
given to compliance works and improvements to heating systems. Alongside this functional work,
general condition improvements have been made to many areas including a full refurbishment of the
Jenkins Block classrooms and circulation spaces at Twynham School and of four classrooms at The
Grange School, restoration of the original stonework to Stourfield Infant School, improvements to
external teaching spaces at Christchurch Junior School and Pupil Toilet refurbishments at Stourfield
Junior.

Trustees regularly review the financial policies and ensure they reflect and support current practice.
Key financial policies are:

 Financial Procedures Policy - last reviewed November 2021 (next review due November 2022)
« Charging & Remission Policy - last reviewed January 2022 (next review due January 2023)
 Debt Recovery Policy - last reviewed November 2021 (next review due November 2023)

« Asset Control Palicy - last reviewed January 2022 (next review due January 2023)

» Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy - last reviewed July 2021 (next review due June 2023)

» Gifts & Hospitality Palicy - last reviewed October 2021 (next review due October 2023)

» Lettings Policy - last reviewed June 2021 (next review due May 2023)

* Reserves & Investment Policy - last reviewed October 2021 (next review due October 2022)

« Whistle Blowing Policy - last reviewed March 2022 (next review due March 2024)

Currently the pension liability Is £4,535,000 (2021 - £15,673,000).

Current projections for the year ended 31 August 2023 indicate that Trust will deliver an in-year
surplus. '

Robust budget-planning processes and clear management reporting during the year are in place at
Trust and individual school level, to ensure sustained viability and going concern status.

Reserves Policy :

The balance sheet shows the Academy Trust having £4,446,000 cash at bank and in hand. The true
amount of assets currently held by the Trust amount to £1,845,000. The reserves balances as at 31st
August 2022 are as follows:
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Twynham Learning

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Strategic Report

£'000 31 August 2022 31 August 2021
Restricted general fund 1,529 904
Restricted fixed asset fund 48,596 49,559
Restricted pension fund (4,535) (15,673)
Unrestricted general fund 316 166

Total funds = 45906 34,956
* Asset / (liability)

Due to its size, the Trust benefits from the formula funded Schoo! Condition Allocation. In the tax year
2021-22, the Trust was allocated £625,367 and in the tax year 2022-23 the Trust was allocated
£549,055. The School Condition Allowance is held in a separate reserve from the general fund, to
ensure that the Trust properties are maintained and developed in accordance with the asset
management plan.

Trustees are mindful that there is no reserve in respect of the pension deficit on the Dorset County
Council pension scheme.

Investment Policy

The Finance Manager is responsible for monitoring cash flow forecasts to ensure the Trust has
sufficient funds available to pay for day-to-day operations. The Finance Manager meets regularly with
the Trust Executive Team to share this information and agree actions. Trustees also regularly monitor
cash flow reports and forecasts produced by the Finance Manager to ensure that commitments are
fully covered.

If the cash flow identified a base level of cash funds that would be surplus to requirements then these
would be invested in interest bearing deposit accounts with a major UK regulated bank.

Should funds be invested, then the Finance Manager will regularly review the interest rates being
achieved.

Levels of reserves and balances are communicated to all Trustees monthly in the management

accounts. The actual level of reserves is included in the year end annual report and financial
statements. -
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report \

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Trustees have an established procedure in place for ensuring risk awareness and management
remain a priority within the Academy Trust. The principal risks for the Trust remain unchanged, with
continued focus on high educational performance and strong financial control to mitigate reputational
and going concern risks. Operational risks are managed by:

« Clear palicies being in place which are regularly reviewed

* Trust-wide staff training programmes in place

* Intemal govemance framework and regular key control checks in place
« Outsourced internal audit programme delivered by Moore South LLP

The Risk Register is a live document and is formally reviewed termly by Trustees and LABs.
Information on Incidents feeds into the Risk Register review cycle. A new post of Risk & Audit Lead
was created within the Core Services Team during 2021-22 in order to give further solidity to the
joining of Risk Management information and action. A new Business Continuity Planning template
was launched during 2021-22.

Fundraising
The Trustees are mindful of the social inequalities evident within our community, particularly
recognising the impact of inflation. Twynham Learning encourage each school community to donate
to established local charities such as the Foodbank and to promote outward-looking charitable
endeavours.

Trustees are also conscious of the need to maximise funds available to support our pupils’ education
and, with this in mind, have charged key Trustees and the CEO to increase income through providing
education-related services. Most of this commissioned work sits under the umbrella of Two Rivers
Institute. Activity within 2021-22 included provision of Continuous Professional Development for local
schools, provision of Governance Training and Year 2 / Year 6 Training via BCP Council, IT
Technician Service and School Improvement Support (including Ofsted Inspection).
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report °

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

As part of Twynham Leaming's commitment to environmental improvements and in line with statutory
expectations, the following information is presented to outline both the energy use and the associated
greenhouse gas emissions from the six Twynham Leaming sites.

UK Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy Use Data (for the period 01/09/2021 - 31/08/2022)
1 September 2021 1 September 2020

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data to 31 August to 31 August
for the period 2022 2021
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 3,282,700 3,809,512
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Gas consumption ’ 390.13 498.72
Owned transport — owned minibus (CJS) ' 0.25 0.20
Total scope 1 390.38 498.92
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e )
Purchased electricity ’ 215.49 230.55
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Managed transport ~ leased minibuses (TS) - 16.39 15.70
Managed transport ~ leased minibuses (TGS) 5.49 5.68
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 1.29 0.48
Total scope 3 23.17 21.86
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e , 629.04 751.33

Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.17 0.20
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Twynham Learning

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used
the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2022 UK Government's
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

« Gas and electricity consumption data was obtained from invoice history across the six sites.
« Data for the mini-bus fleet was obtained from a fuel card history and log book entries.

- .Business mileage from use of staff cars for work purposes was obtained from the organisation’s
expense system.

. ‘Conversion Kg CO2e (to

Element Model Consumption | ‘Factor nearest kg)
CJS Minibus - Owned (Scope 1) Peugeot Boxer 579 miles 0.26 247
TS Minibuses - Leased (Scope 3) Ford Transit St’:aoso'% 2.56 16,385
TGS Minibuses - Leased (Scope 3) Ford Transit ﬁt:g:'n 2.56 5,493
Staff:BliSiness Mileage - Private Cars . .
(ScopH e;:32; Variable 4691 miles 0.27 1,288
Fuel Total Consumption (kWH)  Conversion Factor Kg CO2e (to nearest kg)
Electricity 1,114,316 . 0.19338 215,492
Gas 2,167,405 0.18 390,133
Consumption data - breakdown by site

. Electiicity Use Gas Use 21/22 Electricity Use 20/21
Site 21 IZZ.T(!(Wh) (kWh) (KWh) Gas Use 20/21 (kWh)
TS 557,652 879,984 555,578 1,029,082
TGS 237,988 565,338 197,059 816,302
TPS 57,407 116,835 46,195 196,680
CJs 129,463 © 252,153 151,002 277,783
SIS 51,208 224,971 49,209 259,836
8Js 8o, 598 128,123 86, 786 148,173
Total BEEEL 14 316 2, 167,404 1,085, 829 2, 722 856

= = 5 == —= == = — =
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report

Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector. As recommended, pupil numbers are based on the Autumn Census
data. For Twynham Leaming, the total number of pupils in the October 2021 census was 3716.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

A number of projects were delivered during the academic / financial year with a focus on improving
energy efficiency. These inciuded:
.Heatingrefficiency.

* Boiler Replacement at The Grange School (Art Block)

« Heating repairs across the estate to improve efficiency

LEDilighting $chefies’ _ ,

< LED fittings introduced in The Grange School Sports Hall and in 4 classrooms at Christchurch Junior
School

+ LED lights included in a number of wider condition-based refurbishment projects including eight
classrooms and circulation spaces at Twynham School (Jenkins Block); Y3/4 Pupil Loos at Stourfield
Junior School

+ Failed lighting units replaced with LED units at a number of locations across the estate inside and
outside

Energy schemes remain a priority for ongoing Asset Management project planning where we
anticipate another year of high activity including continuing to replace inefficient heating and lighting
and looking at use of sensors to target use. However, wider work to promote culture and behavioural
energy reduction initiatives is also underway with all schools signing up to a coordinated Sustainability
network and inset day sessions being used to start the involvement of a wider network of energy (and
sustainability) champions.

Stourfield Junior School, Twynham School and Twynham Primary School continue to generate
electricity from solar panel installations and Twynham Learning also opts for a Green Electricity Tariff
across its estate which can provide REGO Certification.

Adoption of Microsoft Teams has enabled an increasing amount of cross-Trust collaborative working
without a corresponding increase in travel. Some meetings have reverted to a face-to-face approach
since the covid pandemic restrictions but many will stay online for energy / cost / time savings.

Plans for Future Periods

The Trust continues on its journey to Excellence, with a clear plan to deliver a World Class education
to the pupils we serve but within a moderate and progressive culture. The School Improvement
Strategy to achieve “deeper green” in terms of pupil outcomes being well above the national average
will be a key focus. We will continue to see the impact of consistent support and challenge within
schools, assured and supported by the Trust's Core Services team.

Parallel activity in Operations Teams will ensure ever-improving standards in the enabling functions
which underpin Teaching & Learning. We will continue to manage our finances tightly to ensure that
we direct our finite resources to where they make the most impact; we will direct attention and funding
to enhancing our infrastructure (buildings and technology) and will also continue to invest in recruiting,
retaining and developing the most exceptional staff in leadership, teaching and support staff roles.
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Twynham Learning

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)
Strategic Report

Leaders across the Trust are committed to:

« A clear and succinct vision for excellence (where do we need to be)

* Robust self-evaluation, outlining strengths and areas for development (where are we now)

* A relentless and uncompromising approach to driving the implementation of their Excellence Plan
(how will we get there) ‘

« Rigorous quality assurance of the implementation process (is our plan effective)

We will continue to see colleagues working together in peer groups across the Trust; enjoying the
opportunity to collaborate on curriculum development, pedagogical approaches, assessment
arrangements, business management, sustainability, staff development and other areas. We learn
from one another and co-create approaches.

The Trust is certainly open to growth but is, first and foremost, focussed on the pupils for whom it is
already responsible. Twynham Learning will continue to work with any local school with whom there is
a shared sense of values and purpose and will be happy for any of these positive relationships to
move towards a more formal partnership on the basis of mutual benefit. The senior team continue to
work with the Local Authority, with other MAT Leaders and link into the Regional Director’'s Team.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others .
The Academy Trust does not act as custodian trustee on behalf of any other body.

Auditor
In-so far as the Trustees are aware:

« there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

+ the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ , atéajc; Repoit; Was, approved by order of the Board of
Trustees, as the:compaiiy. directors, on =% -1 56 1@Nnd sighed, on the board's behalf by:

Mrs Lynda Clarke
Trustee
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Twynham Learning

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Twynham Learning has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to Mr Gareth Morris, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good
financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in
the funding agreement between Twynham Learning and the Secretary of State for Education. The
Accounting Officer is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses
or break-downs in intemal control.

The Audit Committee had oversight on all audit processes and to made annual recommendations for
improvement in the delivery of the governance function. The work of the Committee has developed
during the Academic 2021/22.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and
in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 16 times
during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Meetings Out of a
Trustee attended possible
Mrs Lynda Clarke, Chair 14 15
Mr Doug Croucher, Vice Chair 15 15
Mrs Gaynor Brown 14 15
Mr Michael Turvey 14 15
Mr Bernard Bhukal 12 14
Mrs Alice Baumber-Copp (resigned 5§ January 2022) 1 2
Mr Gareth Morris, Chief Executive Officer ) 13 16.
Mr Gordon Marchant (resigned 21 July 2022) 10 14
Mr Adrian Phipps (resigned 21 July 2022) 8 1
Miss Laura Emily Jane Ellener (appointed 29 March 2022) 2 2
Mr Benjamin Allan Emm (appointed 13 December 2021) 8 8
Mr James Hannam (appointed 29 March 2022) 2 2
Miss Joanne Chandler (appointed 21 March 2022 and resigned 14 4 3
. July 2022) , y
Dr Helena McVeigh (appointed 1 September 2021 and resigned 16 6 6
May 2022)
Mr Adam Kenneth Bingham Scott (appointed 29 March 2022) 3 3
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Twynham Learning

Governance Statement (continued)

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Audit committee was as follows:

Meetings Out of a
Trustee attended possible
Mrs Gaynor Brown 3
Mr Adrian Phipps 3 3
Mr Bernard Bhukal 2 3
Mr Gordon Marchant 2 3
Mr Benjamin Allan Emm 2 2
Miss Joanne Chandler 1 1

Governance reviews

Individual reviews for all Trustees, Chairs of LABs and most LAB members were conducted during the
year and will be extended to all LAB members from September 2022. Training logs are monitored by
the Governance Manager and LAB Clerks to ensure that each Board has sufficiently trained
members. A review of financial competencies is also undertaken annually for key Trustees and for key .
members of staff. An overview of individual reviews and financial competencies are discussed by
trustees and used to decide upon key skills to be sought when making new appointments.

Annual review of governance is a standing agenda item for the Board of Trustees. At this meeting
Trustees consider their operating structures and Terms of Reference, elect the Chair, Vice-Chair and
the Chair of the Audit Committee as well as and appraving the appointment of Local Advisory Board
Chairs and Vice Chairs for the upcoming year. The Scheme of Delegation has been removed from the
Govermnance Handbook to exist as a stand-alone document, although it is still referenced and linked
within the Governance Handbook. The Scheme of Delegation, Governance Handbook and all
Governance Terms of Reference documents are reviewed together annually. In 2021-22 the
documents were reviewed on two occasions, once for the start of the Spring Term, following the
decision to move back to a Committee structure, and again in the Summer Term in readiness for the
next academic year.

During this accounting period, Twynham Learning employed the services of Moore South LLP to
undertake the role of responsible officer and to provide assurance to the Board of Trustees that the
financial responsibilities of the Governing Body are being properly discharged, that resources are
managed in an efficient, economical and effective manner, that sound systems of intemal financial
control are being maintained, and that financial considerations are fully taken into account when
reaching decisions. No major issues were identified during this period and recommendations made by
internal auditors in their final report were either already in place, or are being implemented and
progress tracked.

We are actively embedding best practice principles of governance, utilising the Two Rivers Institute to
provide high quality governance support and training. Governance forms a key part of our Trust-wide
Excellence Strategy where we are refining robust and transparent procedures in the relationship
between governance and organisational delivery.
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Twynham Learning

Governance Statement (continued)

Review of Value for Money

The accounting officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good
value for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for
money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting
officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

Pnnciples

“Trustees, Local Governors and the Senior Leadership teams are provided with regular reports to
enable them to monitor and hold to account the financial management of the Academy Trust. These
reports are used to make informed decisions about the best use of the resources of the Trust.

* The Scheme of Delegation is reviewed and ratified annually. The last review and ratification by
Trustees was undertaken alongside the Governance Handbook, in July 2022.

* The Risk Register for Twynham Learning is reviewed on a termly basis by the Trustees, the Local
Advisory Board of each schoa! within the Trust and nominated persons and committees, including the
Trust Executive Team and the Trustees Audit Committee.

* In addition to external auditors, the Trust employed Moore South (LLP) to take on the role of
Responsible Officer and check the internal controls of the Academy Trust. The Trustees continue to
believe this gives a robust, professional approach to the internal audit programme which ensures
transparency and accountability.” The reports were submitted to the CEO/Accounting Officer, the
Director of Business & Finance / Director of Operations, and were then reviewed at the next meeting
of the Trustees Audit Committee. During the year 2021-22, the intemal audit programme for the
Academy Trust focussed on compliance against the latest Academies Trust Handbook, review of
grant fund reporting, high level review of payroll procedures, review of capital planning process and
reporting and review of intemal oversight process for non-academic areas.

- Separately, audits were commissioned from external bodies to check compliance on Safeguarding
and Health & Safety.

* The Academy Trust continues to adhere to the good practice within the Financial Procedures Policy,
which is reviewed and refreshed annually as a minimum.

* The Trust continually reviews teaching and support staff structures to demonstrate best value In
every aspect of resource management.

* A Best Value Statement is completed by budget holders for any orders over £10,000, together with
an appropriate number of quotations.

* Where appropriate, shared procurement is undertaken, leveraging the buying power of the MAT.
* A Trust-wide catering contract is in place offering all children in the Trust a quality meal at lunchtime.

» The CEO/Accounting Officer and Trustees continue to seek other business opportunities to offer
value for money and/or generate income.
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Twynham Learning

Governance Statement (continued)

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

All schools within the Trust are subject to the same levels of internal control. Advice and support is
available from Moore South who are engaged in the Responsible Officer role. Their audit of internal
controls by their professional and experienced team ensure that Trustees are confident in the systems
in place at all the schools within the Trust. ’

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has undertaken an initial review of the major risks to which the Trust is
exposed. The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks that have been in place since conversion and up to the
date of the approval of the annual report and financial statements.

This process is regularly reviewed by the Trustees. A Risk Register for Twynham Learning is
reviewed on a termly basis by the Trustees, the Local Advisory Board of each school within the Trust

and nominated persons and committees. The Audit Committee also review the Risk Register template
and risk management process on an ongoing basis.

The Risk and Control Framework

Twynham Leaming's system of intemal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountability.

The key components of the framework include:

« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and monthly financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the trustees;

« internal management reporting including cash flow forecasting, explanations of balance sheet items,
and a report showing actual vs budget at a granular level, with explanations of any variances;

+ regular reviews by the Trustees at Resources Focus meetings and subsequently Resources
Committee meetings, once they were reinstated, and of LAB level reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

« setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

« regular benchmarking against other educational establishments

« clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

« delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

« identification and management of risks.
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Twynham Learning

Governance Statement (continued)

Details of financial controls are contained within the Financial Procedures Policy.
Moore South has worked effectively with Trustees and staff, and has been engaged as the Trust's
internal auditor for a further accounting period.

The Trustees agreed a programme with the intemal auditors to include a robust checking of the
Academy Trust’s financial systems and internal controls in all of the schools. A written report is
provided for the Trustees on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the
Trustees’ financial responsibilities. An audit programme for 2021-22 was put forward by the Audit
Comnmittee.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, Mr Gareth Morris has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year ended 31 August 2022 the review has been performed by:

» The work of the Resources/Audit Committees at Trustee and LAB level

» The work of the external auditor

« The work of the internal auditor

+ The financial management and governance self-assessment process

» The work of the CEO/Accounting Officer, who has the responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework within Twynham Learning.

The CEOQ/Accounting Officer is advised of any implications identified by intemal and external auditors.

by:

Mrs Lynda Clarke
Trustee

Chief Executive Officer
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Governance Statement (continued)
Appendix 1- Twynham Learning Excellence Strategy Themes
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Twynham Learning

~ Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As Accounting Officer of Twynham Leaming | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy
trust, under the funding agreement in place between the academy ftrust and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies
Financial Handbook 2021.

| confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of all funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
conditions of funding under the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial

Handbook 2021.

I confirm that no instances of material iregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been
discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified
to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.
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Twﬁham Learning

v' Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the directors of Twynham Learning for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction issued by the Education Funding Agency;

* make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good
financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have
been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 9‘]222' and signed on its behalf
by:
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Twynham Learning

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Twynham Learning

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Twynham Leaming (the 'Academy’) for the year ended 31
August 2022, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash
Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice),
including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland'.

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the'Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Academy in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the original
financial statements were authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information (covers the Reference and Administrative Detalils, the Trustees’ Report and
Strategic Report and the Governance Statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
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Twynham Leaming

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Twynham Learning (continued)

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in.the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report far the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or Trustees'
Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
+ _ certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities [set out on page 27], the
Trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to -
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the
Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed
below:
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Twynham Learning

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Twynham Learning (continued)

As part of our audit planning we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that
is applicable to the entity and the education sector in which it operates to identify the key laws and
regulations affecting the entity. The key laws and regulations we identified were compliance with the
funding agreement and Academies Financial Handbook 2021 and requirements with regard to
safeguarding.

‘We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the
financial statements, primarily the Academies Accounts Direction 2021/22, Companies Act 2006 and
Charities Act 2011.

We discussed with management how the compliance with these laws and regulations is monitored
and discussed the palicies and procedures in place. We also identified the individuals who have
responsibility for ensuring that the entity complies with laws and regulations and deals with reporting
any issues if they arise.

As part of our planning procedures, we assessed the risk of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations on the entity’s ability to continue operating and the risk of material misstatement to the
accounts.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such
laws and regulations. Our procedures involved the following:

» As part of our enquiries we discussed with management whether there have been any known
instances, allegations or suspicions of fraud of which there were none.

* Reviewed legal and professional costs to identify any possible non-compliance or legal costs in
respect of non-compliance.

* Reviewed board minutes.

We also evaluated the risk of fraud through management override including that arising from
management's incentives. We determined that these risks are low as the academy operates on a
charitable, not for profit basis and so there would be no motivation for management to influence
performance for individual gain. However, there was considered a risk of the inappropriate allocation
of expenditure against restricted funds.

In response to the identified risk, as part of our audit work we:

« Reviewed the material restricted grant income sources, identified the related conditions and
reviewed the nature of expenditure set against it for appropriateness, together with sample testing on
expenditure;

* Used data analytics to test journal entries throughout the period, for appropriateness;

* Reviewed accounting estimates and judgements made in the accounts for any indication of bias and
challenged assumptions Used by management in making the estimates.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities,
including those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements. This risk increases the
further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements as we are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk
of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment, collusion,
omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’'s website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of Twynham Learning (continued)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Academy's Members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Academy's Members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed. :

o

s¥sessssennesernasseetssorsnresrtesane

Paul Giessler FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
PKF Francis Clark, Statutory Auditor

Hitchcock House
Hilltop Park
Devizes Road
Salisbury

SP3 4UF

Date'1 4 December 202

..............................
EERARIA RIS S AL E ARSI AANA AL S
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to Twynham Learning and the Education and Skills
Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23 September 2022 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction issued by the Education Funding Agency, we have carried out an engagement to
obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Twynham
Learning during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been applied to the purposes
identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Twynham Learning and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Twynham Learning and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Twynham Leaming
and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Twynham Learning's Accounting Officer and the reporting
Accountant .

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Twynham Learning's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 30 March 2011 and the Academies
Financial Handbook 2021, extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed
and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education Funding
Agency. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which
suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year
from 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Partiament
or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors
and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance
engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

« Inspection and review of documentation providing evidence of governance procedures;
« Evaluation of the system of internal controls for authorisation and approval;

« Performing substantive tests on relevant transactions.
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to Twynham Learning and the Education and Skills
Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2021 to 31
August 2022 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions
do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

b

FsaulG ;ess er FCA
For and on behalf of Francis Clark LLP, Chartered Accountants

Hitchcock House
Hilitop Park
Devizes Road
Salisbury

SP3 4UF
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Twynham Learning

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2022
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2022
Funds Funds Funds Total
Note £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital
grants 2 36 . 629 665
Other trading activities 4 543 = = 543
Charitable activitiés:
Funding for the Academy
Trust's charitable operations 3 & 21,042 = 21,042
Teaching schools i 32 = =32
Total 579 21,074, 629, .. 22,282
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 5 429 = - 429
Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational
operations 6 = 22,409 1,290 23,699
Teaching schools . YR s . | (I S 57
Total . 429 . 22466 1290 24,185
Net income/(expenditure) 150 (1,392) (661) (1,903)
Transfers between funds = 302 (302) o2
Other recognised gains
and losses
Actuarial gain/(loss) on
defined benefit pension
schemes 20 2 12,853 — ==, . 12,853
Net movement in
funds/(deficit) 150 11,763 (963) 10,950
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds/(deficit) brought
forward at 1 September
2021 166 (14,769) .___ 49,559 _.. . 34,956
Total funds/(deficit) carried :
forward at 31 August 2022 316 _ _ (3,006) . 48,596 45,906
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Twynham Learning

Startement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2021
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital

" grants _ 2
Charitable activities:

Funding for the Academy
Trust's charitable operations 3

Teaching schools

Other trading activities 4
Total

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 5

Charitable activities:

Academy trust educational
operations 6

Teaching schools

Total

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains
and losses

Actuarial gain/(loss) on
defined benefit pension

schemes 20

Net movement in
funds/(deficit)

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/(deficit) brought
forward at 1 September
2020

Total funds/(deficit) carried
forward at 31 August 2021

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2021

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

23 = 861 884

= 20,552 S 20,552

= 85 = 85

365 i} P 4 __ 365

388 ._-_20637, . __ 861 __ 21886

365 2 3 365

= 21,582 1,298 22,880

e m 99, = _ .99
. 365, 21681, _ 1298 _ 23344
23 (1,044) (437) (1,458)

= 126 (126) 2=
= .. (108) ... . = -(1,081).

23 (1,999) (563) (2,539)
_ 1_43 . \_",___(12,770)" - 50122 _ _ 37495

_. 166 (14,769);. 49,559 34,956
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Twynham Learning

(Registration number: 07565088)
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2022

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy:

Restricted funds
Restricted general fund
Restricted fixed asset fund
Restricted pension fund

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund

Total funds

The fin:
on ...

ancigl itatemen

i\"lllrs'Lynda Clarke .
Trustee
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2022 2021
Note £000 £.000
11 47,075 48,029
12 519 403,
4446 . 3680
Cages | 4083

13 : ‘i_.@—ﬂl‘ — 1(1'483?:
.. 3386, . 2600
50441 _ 50620
50,441 50,629

20 (4535) _ (15,673)
_ 45906, . 34,956
1,529 904

48,596 49,559

(4535 _ (15673)

T 45590 34790

__ 316 _ 166
45,906 34,956

; 16 pages 34 to 61 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue
=565 and.are’signed on their behalf by:



Twynham Learning

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2022

2022. 2021
Note £ 000 £ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 17 475 687
Cash flows from investing activities 18 N 201 _379
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 766 1,066
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 3,680 — ;?,614.:
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 23 . 4446 3,680 .
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Twynham Learning

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2022

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted {which have been applied consistently, except
. where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty is set out below.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a
minimum period of one year from the date of approval of the financial statements. The trustees have
prepared cash flow forecasts which cover this period and have considered the impact of senstivities to
income and expenditure.

Based on this assessment the trustees are satisfied the-going concern basis of accounting remains
appropriate.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any
performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition
is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are
met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income Is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised
as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are spent on capital projects in line with the terms and conditions of the grant. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they
are expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable, where the receipt is probable
and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.
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Twynham Learning

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2022 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities and fees charged to other schools and organisations for
services rendered, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the goods have been
provided or on completion of the service.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income
from other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'.
Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not
recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income
from other trading activities’.

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed
asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's
accounting policies.

Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust

Where assets are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the trust, the transferred assets
are measured at fair value and recognised in the. balance sheet at the point when the risks and
rewards of ownership pass to the trust, which is on signing of the transfer agreement with the
transferring trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the Transfer of an existing academy
into the trust within Donations and capital grant income.

Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed
asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's
accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of
each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use,

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2022 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities. .

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with
the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in
the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. The related
grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried
forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of
the related asset on a basis consistent with the Academy Trust's depreciation policy.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful lives, per the table below.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Leasehold buildings 50 years straight line
Leasehold improvements 10 years straight line

Furniture & fittings 3 - 5 years straight line
Computer equipment 3 years straight line

Motor Vehicles 5 years straight line

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2022 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme (‘'TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS'). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is
a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and-the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded muitiemployer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by muitiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education Skills Funding Agency/Department for Education.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2022 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions
liability at 31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement

A critical area of judgement is the recognition of trip income and costs as either restricted or
unrestricted funds.

The school has a long-standing policy that any surplus on an individual trip in excess of a reasonable
administration fee per pupil is returned to the parent. The school does not retain any surplus in
respect of any this income. It is raised from parents for an explicit purpose, and where a trip is
cancelled subsequent to contributions being collected then all of the contributions received are
returned to the parents concemed. Therefore, this clearly is not money that is available for the general
purposes of the charity and so is classified as restricted.

A critical area of judgement is whether the school has a constructive obligation in respect of a
redundancy payment or not.

The school issues a member of staff a notice of termination of employment. This notice creates a
constructive obligation between the member of staff and the school. At this point the school
recognises an accrual or provision in the accounts for the expected redundancy payment.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 12. Prepayments are not financial instruments.
Amounts due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2022 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 13. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument. Amounts due to charity’s wholly owned subsidiary
are held at face value less any impairment.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in setitement, and the amount
of the setlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy
trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result

of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation

can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset 2021 2020
funds funds Total Total
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Capital grants s 629 629 861
Other donations * =36 .=, . 36 23
3 _ 629 665 884
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Twynham Learning

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Restricted Total Total
funds 2022 2021
£ 000 £ 000 £000
DfE/ESFA revenue grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) 18,642 18,642 17,379
Other DfE grants 94 94 101
Pupil Premium 726 726 705
UIFSM — 150 150 _ 151 -
.. 19612, .  _ 19612 . _ 18,336
Other government
grants A
Local Authority Grants 544 544 508
Special educational projects — 767 _ 767 —_ 1,260 .
e A1 1311 1768
Non-government
grants and other income
Trip income 119 119 31
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up premium i < 281
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding D T ~ 116
= Fooo =397 .
COVID-19 additional funding (non-DfE/ESFA)
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant o = ;-’ 20
Total grants ' 21,042, ___21 042 20, 552 ),552

The funding for educational operations was £21 041 536 (2021 £20 551 501) Wthh was allocated
between the funds as follows; £163 unrestricted funds (2021: £40), £21,041,372 restricted funds
(2021: £20,551,461), £N|I restricted fixed asset funds (2021: £Nil) and £Nil endowment funds (2021:

£Nil).

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support
schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above.

The academy furloughed some of its Music and Minibus staff under the govemment's CJRS. The
funding received of £nil (2021 - £20k) relates to staff costs in respect of nil - (2021 - 24) staff which

are included within note 7 below as appropriate.
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Twynham Learning

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

4 Other trading activities

Hire of facilities

Sale of educational supplies
Insurance claims

Other generating funds income

The income from other trading activities was £543,140 (2021: £365,301) which was allo

Unrestricted 2022 2021
funds Total Total
£ 000 £ 000 £000

86 86 44
87 87 97
31 31 42
339 .____ .. 339 .. _ _182.
543 543 365

cated between

the funds as follows; £543,140 unrestricted funds (2021: £365,301), £Nil restricted funds (2021: £Nil),
£Nil restricted fixed asset funds (2021: £Nil) and £Nil endowment funds (2021: £Nil).

5 Expenditure

Non Pay Expenditure

2022 2021
Staff costs Premises  Other costs Total Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Expenditure on
raising funds
Direct costs 156 25 248 429 365
Academy's
educational
operations
Direct costs 14,453 1,290 1,390 17,133 17,110
Allocated support
costs 4,152 1338 1,076 6,566 5,770
TeachingSchoot 33 _ _ ... - . 24 = = 57 99
_ 18,794 2,653 2,738 .._.24185. . 23344
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:
2022 2021
£ 000 £000
Operating leases -~ other leases 72 30
Fees payable to auditor - audit 23 21
- other audit services 5 4

Page 45



Twynham Learning

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

6 Charitable activities

Direct costs - educational operations
Support costs - educational operations

1

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Technology costs
Premises costs
Other support costs
Governance costs

Total support costs

7 Staff

Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Supply teacher costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments

Total Total
2022 2021
£ 000 £ 000
17,133 17,110
.._.._656. . . . 5770
23,699 22,880
Educational Total Total
operations 2022 2021
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000
4,152 4,152 3,610
114 114 155
1,338 1,338 1,146
906 906 805
. » 56 = 56.. ST 54
. - 6566 6,566 5,770
2022 2021
£ 000 £ 000
12,750 12,610
1,216 1,157
4,472 4,037
18,438 17,804
%6 88
.. 18794 17,892
2022 2021
£ 000 £ 000
14 3
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2022 (continued)

7 Staff (continued)

Staff numbérs

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

2022 2021
No .No
Charitable Activities _
Teachers 227 222
Administration and support - 254 261
Management - 3 3
e .. 484 _ _ 486

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose emoluments (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000
was:

2022 2021
No No
£60,001 - £70,000 2 5
£70,001 - £80,000 4 4
£80,001 - £90,000 1 1
£90,001 - £100,000 1 -
£150,001 - £160,000 1 1,

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Chief Executive Officer and
Senior Management Team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including
employer national insurance and pension contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the Academy Trust was £395,438 (2021: £425,837).
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2022 (continued)

8 Central services

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

» Strategic Leadership
» School Standards
« Safeguarding

* Audit

*» Risk Management
» Training

* Human resources
-IT

* Finance

« Facilities

» Governance

* Business Admin

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:
The trusts charges the schools 5% of their funding as a "top slice" for central charges.,

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

Twynham Schoo!

The Grange School
Twynham Primary
Stourfield Junior School
Stourfield Infant School
Christchurch Junior School

9 Related party transactions - Trustees' remuneration and expenses

2022
£ 000

471
119
47
103
73

107

920

No Trustees have been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with
the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of

employment. The value of Trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:
Mr Gareth Morris (CEO):

Remuneration: £155,000 - £160,000 (2021 - £155,000 - £160,000)
Employer’s pension contributions: £25,000 - £30,000 (2021 - £0 - £5,000)

Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out in note 21.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

10 Trustees' and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
Academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim. The cost of this
insurance is not separately identifiable from information provided by the insurance provider.

11 Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold  Furniture
land and and Computer Leasehold Motor
buildings equipment equipmentImprovements Vehicles Total
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Cost
At 1 September
2021 52,148 358 505 3,427 31 56,469
Additions =g 7. 91 . 169 %1‘,_ 338
At 31 August )
2022 52,148 435 596 3,596 32 . .56,807
Depreciation
At 1 September .
2021 5,503 354 422 2,156 6
Charge for the .
year i836°. 37 85 327 _ 6
At 31 August . " i
2022 6,339 391 507 ____2483. __ —'73}25.,.; _:’9;;7.32-
Net book value
At 31 August
2022 . 45,809 4 89 1,113 20 47,075
At 31 August )
2021 46,645 4 83 - __-1271. . 25 ___ 48,028
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

12 Debtors

Trade debtors

Prepayments

Accrued grant and other income
VAT recoverable

Other debtors

13 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Pension scheme creditor
Accruals

Deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2021
Resources deferred in the period
Amounts released from previous periods

Deferred income at 31 Augdst 2022

2022 2021

£ 000 £000

21 22

134 93

154 153

193 128
e AT 7.
519 _ 403,
2022 2021

£ 000 £000
273 243

279 279

28 1

310 308

561 453

148 199
_ 1599 1483
2022 2021
£000 £ 000
199 239

148 199
{199 (239
199

__ 148

At the balance sheet date, the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance for trips which
will take place in the new financial year, funds received in advance on grants which cover the period

to 31 March 2023 or 31 August 2023.

Page 50



Twynham Learning

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

14 Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil Premium

Other DfE Grants

LEA and other grants
Trips

SCITT

Other restricted

UIFSM

SGO

Teaching school

Restricted fixed asset funds
" Donation from Local Authority
DfE Capital funding

Capital expenditure from GAG
LEA grant

Transfers from existing
academies

Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

=
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Balance at Gains,
1 losses Balance at
September and 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure  transfers 2022
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
71 M8e42  (18251), 298 1480
o 63
5
904 __Z1j07a. _ (owsty _ @02 _ 1528
43,035 = (836) B 42,199
2,801 629 (217) = 3,213
716 o5 (46) (302) 368
168 = (9) 159
o 2839 =, . (182) & 2657
49,559 629 (1,290) (302) 48,596
_ ‘1"5,673)_ = (1,715) . 12883 __ (4,535).
34,790 21,703 (23,756) 12,853 45,590
166 579 _ (Jgé_) e e _316.
e 34 956 . 2 22 282, (24 185) _ 12 853. 45 906
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

14 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil Premium

Other DfE Grants

LEA and other grants
Trips

SCITT

Other restricted

UIFSM

SGO

Teaching school

Catch-up premium

Coronavirus Job. Retention
Scheme grant

Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19

Restricted fixed asset funds

Donation from Local Authority

DfE Capital funding
Capital expenditure from GAG
LEA grant

Transfers from existing
academies

Restricted pension funds
Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains,
1 losses Balance at
September and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
374 17,379 (17,108) 126 771
- " 705 (705) ¥ =
- 101 (101) - =
z 508 (508) s =
- 31 (31) = =
65 1,168 (1,153) < 80
= 17 (17) e
¥ 151 (151) = i
15 75 (58) 5 32
35 85 (99) . 21
= 281 (281)
- 20 (20) =
o = 116 . . _(116). . .= o
489 20637 _(20348) 126 __ _.804&
43,871 =2 (836) - 43,035
2,269 861 (203) (126) 2,801
767 = (51) 2 716
180 = (12) a 168
3,035 = (196) - 2,839,
50,122 861 (1,298) (126) 49,559
=-(13,259) e (1:333) . (1.081) __
37,352 21,498  #(22,979)  {(1,081) ;
e 143 388 (365)
37,495 24886 _ 1(23,344)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
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14 Funds (continued)
A current year 12 months and prior year 12 months combined position is as follows:

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant (GAG) — The Academy's principal funding stream received from the Education
Skills and Funding Agency (ESFA).

A transfer has been made fixed asset funds to GAG to cover expenditure which did not meet the
criteria to be recognised as a fixed asset but had been funded through capital income.

A transfer has been made from unrestricted funds into GAG funds to cover the deficit.

"Pupil Premium — DfE funding to address inequalities between children eligible for free school meals
and their wealthier peers by ensuring that funding reaches the pupils who need it most.

Other DfE grants — Other specific grants from the DfE including assistance with the cost of
establishing a Multi-Academy Trust.

LEA and other grants — Other grants from the Local Education Authority including for teacher training
and skllls support. ’

Pension reserve ~ The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme has been recognised
against restricted funds in order to match it against GAG as recommended by the ESFA Accounts
Direction. .

Trips — Contributions from students towards trips and events run by the school. Where a surplus
above a set limit is generated on a specific trip, this is retumed to the students.

SCITT (School-Centred Initial Teacher Training) - Twynham is the lead school for the Boumemouth,
Poole and Dorset East SCITT. Funding is received for bursaries and placement fees for student
teachers in the area which is then distributed to the schools and teachers participating in the scheme.

Restricted fixed asset funds — Funding for capital items and projects. This also includes an element of
capital spend funded from GAG.
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14 Funds (continued)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows:

2022 2021
£000 . £000
Twynham School 863 374
The Grange School (344) (260)
Twynham Primary 108 135
Stourfield Junior School 443 379
Stourfield Infant School 184 101
Christchurch Junior School 385 283
Central services — 206 e e 58 .
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 1,845 1,070
Restricted fixed asset fund 48,596 49,559
Pension reserve . __(4,535) (15,673)_
Total 45,906 34,956
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching
and
Educational Other Other Costs
Support Support Educational {excluding Total
Staff Costs Staff Costs - Supplies Depreciation) 2022
£ 000 £000 £000 - £ 000 £ 000
Twynham Schoo! 7,180 1,854 701 1,046 10,781
The Grange School 1,892 630 131 393 3,046
Twynham Primary 812 211 61 152 1,236
Stourfield Junior
School 1,669 327 88 328 2,412
Stourfield Infant
School 1,072 292 176 224 1,764
Christchurch Junior ‘
School 1,689 336 141 310 2,476
Central services . 294 _ 635 . 356 920 2,105
Academy Trust 14,608 4,185 1,654 —-3,373. . 23,820 .
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

14 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Teaching
and
Educational Other Other Costs
Support Support Educational (excluding Total
Staff Costs Staff Costs Supplies Depreciation) 2021
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Twynham School 6,835 1,484 1,355 939 10,613
The Grange School 1,979 539 93 311 2,922
Twynham Primary 795 260 17 188 1,260
Stourfield Junior
School 1,639 259 36 220 2,154
Stourfield Infant
Schaal 1,112 210 57 251 1,630
Christchurch Junior
School 1,614 239 95 231 2,179
Central services o 258 669 = 10 351 . 1,288
Academy Trust 14,232 3,660. . 1,663. . _2491. . 22,046

The Grange School is carrying a net deficit of £344k on these funds primarily because of the falling

number on rall.

The Trust continues to support The Grange School and has aligned the curriculum with Twynham
School effective from September 2021 and implemented a single leadership and teaching team

across both schools.

15 Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are represented by:

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted general fixed asset
funds funds funds  Total funds
£000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Tangible fixed assets - = 47,075 47,075
Current assets 354 3,090 1,521 4,965
Current liabilities - (1,599) = (1,599)
Pension scheme liability .. (4535) s (4535
Total net assets 354 - {3044) ___ 485596 .. 45906

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
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15 Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)
Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted general fixed asset

funds funds funds Total funds

£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Tangible fixed assets = = 48,028 48,028
Current assets 166 2,387 1,531 4,084
Current liabilities = (1,483) = (1,483)
Pension scheme liability : (15673): .. . = .. (15673)
Total net assets e - 166 _(14769) . 49559 _ 34,956

ey

= EEREE e v a1

16 Financial commitments

Operating leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease paymehts under
non-cancellable operating leases was:

2022 2021

£ 000 £ 000
Amounts due within one year ' 94 31
Amounts due between one and five years _A_ 127 44

e 221, _ 75.

17 Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

2022 2021
: £ 000 £000

Net expenditure (1,903) (1,458)
Depreciation 1,291 1,298
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (629) (861)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 1,455 1,119
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 260 214
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (116) 11
Increase in creditors . M7 . 364
Net cash provided by Operating Activities ) 475 _687“.5,.
18 Cash flows from investing activities

2022 2021

£ 000 £000
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (338) (482)
Capital grants from DfE Group = _629 A 7861 )
Net cash provided by investing activities —_ 2. . 379
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2022 (continued)

19 Members’ liability

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable
company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

20 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Dorset Council. Both are
multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS
31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £(309,516) (2021 - £(307,619)) were payable to the schemes at 31 August
2022 and are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed
by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in
academy trusts. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future
costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried
out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2019.
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20 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

» empioyer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)

» total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

« the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. Assumed real rate of retum is 2.4% in excass of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real eamings. The rate of real earnings growth is
assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,999,662 (2021: £1,988,965).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme.
The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £1,021,000 (2021 -
£951,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £792,000 (2021 - £734,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £229,000 (2021 - £217,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
22 per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities
would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2022 2021

% %
Rate of increase in salaries ' 3.95 3.90
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.95 290
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 425 1.65
Inflation assumptions (CPI) o —.—295 . _ 280
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2022 (continued)

20 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality

rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

Retiring today
Males retiring today
Females retiring today

Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years
Females retiring in 20 years

2022

22.10
24.20

23.40
25.60

2021

23.10
24.60

24.40
26.10

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 August At 31 August

2022 2021
. £000 £000

Discount rate +0.1% 15,483 26,118
Discount rate -0.1% 16,240 27,429
Mortality assumption — 1 year increase 16,337 27,857
Mortality assumption — 1 year decrease 15,392 25,716
CPI rate +0.1% 16,218 27,367
CPl rate -0.1% 15,504 26,178
Salary rate +0.1% 15,883 26,818
Salary rate -0.1% _15831. .. 26,712
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

2022 2021

£ 000 £ 000
Equities 6,106 6,080
Gilts 1,237 1,307
Other bonds 521 615
Property 1,169 972
Cash and other liquid assets 174 177
Other 2145, . 1941
Total market value of assets 11,322 11,092

The actual return on scheme assets was (£459,000) (2021 - £1,885,000).
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20 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

2022 2021

£ 000 £ 000
Current service cost 2,247 1,863
Interest income (189) (142)
Interest cost 441 348
Admin expenses o8 8
Total amount recognised in the SOFA ) 2,507 2,067
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2022 2021

£ 000 £ 000
At start of period : 26,765 21,825
Current service cost 2,247 . 1,853
Interest cost 441 348
Employee contributions 229 217
Actuarial (gain)/loss (15,089) 3,245
Losses or gains on curtailments 1,574 (411)
Benefits paid e = (310) .. (312)
At 31 August . 15857 26,765
Changes in the fair value of Academy Trust's share of scheme assets

2022 2021

£ 000 £ 000
At start of period 11,092 8,566
Interest income . 181 134
Actuarial gain/(loss) (662) 1,753
Employer contributions 792 734
Employee contributions 229 217
Benefits paid _ (310) (312)
At 31 August 11,322 . _ 11 ,0921;

21 Related party transactions

There were no related party transactions in the year, other than certain trustees’ remuneration and

expenses already disclosed in note 9.
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‘ 22 Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash
Total

23 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

At1

September At 31 August
2021 Cash flows 2022

£000 £000 £000

3,680 766 4,446

_.._.3680 ___ 766 4,446
2022 2021

£ 000 £000
. 4446 3,680
..-3,680.
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